Public Document Pack

Agenda for Council Extraordinary Meeting
Thursday, 9th January, 2025, 6.00 pm

District Council

East Devon District Council
Blackdown House

Border Road

Heathpark Industrial Estate
Honiton

EX14 1EJ

To: All elected Members of the Council; Honorary Aldermen

Venue: Council Chamber, Blackdown House, Honiton

Contact: Andrew Melhuish, Democratic Services Manager;
DX 48808 HONITON

Tel: 01404 515616
(or group number 01395 517546)

Issued Tuesday, 31 December 2024 www.eastdevon.gov.uk

This meeting is being recorded for subsequent publication on the Council’s website and will
be streamed live to the East Devon District Council YouTube channel

Dear Sir/Madam

Extraordinary Meeting of the Council of the District of East Devon on
Thursday, 9th January, 2025 at 6.00 pm

You are called upon to attend the above meeting to be held inthe Council Chamber,
Blackdown House, Honiton. It is proposed that the matters set out on the agenda below will
be considered at the meeting and resolution or resolutions passed as the Council considers
expedient.

Yours faithfully

1 Honden

Tracy Hendren
Chief Executive

1  Apologies

2 Declarations of interest

Guidance is available online to Councillors and co-opted members on making
declarations of interest

3  Confidentiallexempt item(s)

page 1


https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCmNHQruge3LVI4hcgRnbwBw
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillor-conduct/councillor-reminder-for-declaring-interests/

To agree any items to be dealt with after the public (including the Press) have
been excluded. There are no items which officers recommend should be dealt
with in this way, but if confidential minutes from Cabinet and/or the Council’s
Committees are being discussed, Officers may recommend consideration in the
private part of the meeting.

4  English Devolution White Paper (Pages 3 - 16)

Under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, any members of the
public are now allowed to take photographs, film and audio record the proceedings and
report on all public meetings (including on social media). No prior notification is needed but
it would be helpful if you could let the democratic services team know you plan to film or
record so that any necessary arrangements can be made to provide reasonable facilities for
you to report on meetings. This permission does not extend to private meetings or parts of
meetings which are not open to the public. You should take all recording and photography
equipment with you if a public meeting moves into a session which is not open to the public.

If you are recording the meeting, you are asked to act in a reasonable manner and not
disrupt the conduct of meetings for example by using intrusive lighting, flash photography or
asking people to repeat statements for the benefit of the recording. You may not make an
oral commentary during the meeting. The Chairman has the power to control public
recording and/or reporting so it does not disrupt the meeting.

Members of the public exercising their right to speak during Public Question Time will be
recorded.

Decision making and equalities

Fora copyofthis agendain large print, please contactthe Democratic
Services Teamon 01395517546

page 2


http://new.eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/committees-and-meetings/decision-making-and-equalities-duties/

Agenda ltem 4

Report to: Council

Date of Meeting: 9" January 2025

Document classification: Part A Public Document e .
District Council
Review date for release N/A

English Devolution White Paper
Report summary:

The English Devolution White Paper sets out the new government’s approach to deepening and
widening devolution in England. The document places an emphasis on areas adopting a mayoral
model to access additional powers and greater financial flexibility. The White Paper also sets out
plans to reorganise local government, with an aim to establish larger unitary authorities in two-tier
areas and where smaller unitary authorities cannot meet local needs. The report also summarises
proposed changes to how strategic planning is dealt with across wider geographies.

This report has been updated to reflect the recommendations from the Cabinet meeting held on 8
January 2025.

Recommendations:
That Council;

Notes the key proposals arising from the English Devolution White Paper, including the proposed
introduction of a new devolution framework and the plans for local government reorganisation

Endorses the;

1. a. Joint Leaders statement from the Devon Districts Forum
b. Potential to promote the establishment of a Mayoral Combined Authority for the
peninsular to cover Devon, Plymouth, Torbay and Cornwall
c. Need to engage with our communities, partners and stakeholders to develop considered
and coherent proposals around changes to the current model of 10 councils in Devon to
a smaller number of suitably sized unitaries rather than defaulting to a single unitary
approach.

2. Beliefthat a preferred pathway should be explored which would create two Devon Unitary
Authorities, one of which should be focused around the North Devon, Mid Devon, East
Devon and Teignbridge District Councils, along with Exeter City Council.

3. Belief that the people of Devon would be best served after the abolition of the county
council by the two new unitaries, containing a city in each this being Plymouth to the west,
and Exeter to the east.

4. Grants delegated authority to the Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader and
Portfolio Holder for Council and Corporate Co-ordination to advance negotiations around
the form and coverage of future Principal Authorities.

5. Receives a further report in February providing an update on the negotiations before interim
proposals are submitted to central government.
Reason for recommendation:

To ensure all members are aware of the proposed changes set out in the English Devolution
White Paper, particularly those relating to local government reorganisation.

page 3



Officers: Tom Winters, Economic Development Manager, email: twinters@eastdevon.gov.uk Andy
Wood, Director of Place, email: andy.wood@eastdevon.gov.uk

Portfolio(s) (check which apply):

Climate Action and Emergency Response
Coast, Country and Environment

Council and Corporate Co-ordination
Communications and Democracy
Economy

Finance and Assets

Strategic Planning

Sustainable Homes and Communities
Culture, Leisure, Sport and Tourism

Equalities impact Low Impact
Climate change Low Impact

Risk: High Risk; Although there is no direct risk associated with the recommendations of the report,
members should be aware of the wider impact and risks associated with the proposed changes setout in
the White Paper. The White Paper has already precipitated a series events that will be of seminal
importance in determining future local government structures in Devon.

Links to background information English Devolution White Paper, LGA Devolution White Paper
Briefing.
Link to Council Plan

Priorities
A supported and engaged community
Carbon neutrality and ecological recovery

Resilient economy that supports local business
Financially secure and improving quality of services

The chart below is taken directly from the White Paper, illustrating the new links between national
and local government as part of an overall approach to streamlining government structures.

page 4


mailto:twinters@eastdevon.gov.uk
mailto:andy.wood@eastdevon.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/english-devolution-white-paper-power-and-partnership-foundations-for-growth
https://www.local.gov.uk/parliament/briefings-and-responses/devolution-white-paper-day-factual-briefing
https://www.local.gov.uk/parliament/briefings-and-responses/devolution-white-paper-day-factual-briefing
https://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/council-business/our-plans/council-plan/

Policymaking and Tiers of government Representation
coordination

-

MNational Government
Delivery and coordination of
national level services, such as
defense and macroeconomic L1
policy, and services where
national consistency is crucial,
such as health

. A

~\
Strategic Authorities
Coordination of levers relating to
local growth and issues crossing
Mayors may also . cou ncil boundar‘igs. such as a Mayoral and
come together |nfr"as‘tr1_|ctur|.3 plannlr‘fg. tran?.pc:-rt, Enhanced SAs are
across larger and spmlal planning, whlle. represented
geographical areas | conwvening partners for public || through the
to collaborate on service reform Council of
inter-regional : MNations and
issues, like energy [ Combined Authorities ) Regions and the
and water Mayoral Council
(Comhined County ﬁuthoritles)

( Greater London Authority )
e S

Principal Authorities

Delivery of local public

Principal authorities

sarvices, place shaping and Local authorities
come togather to local public service reform are represented
form Strategic | through the
Authorities (outside Unitary Councils j — Leaders Council
of London)
4 County Councils 1:

i District Councils

Context

1.1 Following the July 2024 election result, the new Labour government committed to publishing a
white paper outlining their policies and approaches to devolution. The purpose of this was to
replace the framework established by the previous government’s Levelling Up White Paper and
consequential Levelling Up and Regeneration Act 2023.

1.2 The incoming government committed to ‘widening and deepening’ devolution, with a focus on
expanding the mayoral model, ending the deals-based approach and working towards
implementing a ‘devolution by default’ approach.

1.3 The English Devolution White Paper was published on 16 December 2024. This was
accompanied by a letter from the Minister of State for Local Government and English Devolution
(attached at Appendix A).

1.4 This report will focus on the four main points members should be aware of:

a) Principal Authorities and local government reorganisation
b) Strategic Authorities and ‘devolution by default’

c) The expansion of powers and funding for mayoral areas
d) Changes to strategic planning

Principal Authorities

2.1 The government has confirmed that they will facilitate a programme of local government
reorganisation for two tier areas, creating larger unitary authorities. This will also apply to those
unitary councils where there is evidence of failure or where their size or boundaries may be

hindering their ability to deliver sustainable and high-quality services for their residents.
page 5



2.2 There is an expectation that all affected areas develop locally-led proposals for reorganisation,
with existing councils working together to identify the best option for their area. These plans should
complement devolution, rather than delay it, whilst avoiding scenarios where competing proposals
are developed within a given geography.

2.3 For most areas this will mean creating new unitary councils with a population of 500,000 or
more. The government has acknowledged that there may be exceptions to ensure new structures
make sense for an area, including for devolution. They have also confirmed that decisions on
proposals will be made on a case-by-case basis.

2.4 The government claim that unitarisation can cut wasteful duplication of bodies, reduce the
number of politicians and reduce fragmentation of public services. It is hoped that there will also
be knock-on benefits for strategic planning decisions (see section 5 below).

2.5 The table below shows the total population figures for each district and unitary area in Devon,
as taken from the 2021 Census. By way of illustration, the greater Exeter area (including Exeter,
East Devon, Mid Devon and Teignbridge) had a population of 499,192 at the time of the 2021
Census.

Area Population
East Devon 150,828
Exeter 130,709
Mid Devon 82,852
North Devon 98,611
South Hams 88,627
Teignbridge 134,803
Torridge 68,114
West Devon 57,096
Plymouth (Unitary) 264,695
Torbay (Unitary) 139,324
Devon (County Council) 811,640
Devon (Ceremonial) 1,215,659

Strategic Authorities

3.1 The White paper outlines how the government will create, in law, the concept of a Strategic
Authority. There will be two types of Strategic Authority:

a) Foundation Strategic Authorities: this will automatically include non-mayoral Combined
County Authorities (such as the Devon and Torbay CCA), and any Local Authority
designated as a Strategic Authority without a Mayor.

b) Mayoral Strategic Authorities: this will automatically include all Mayoral Combined
Authorities.

3.2 The default assumption is for Strategic Authorities to have a combined population of 1.5 million
or above. The government has acknowledged that in some places, smaller authorities may be
necessary.

3.3 Strategic Authorities must cover sensible economic geographies with a particular focus on
functional economic areas, travel-to-work patterns and local labour markets. Where these areas
are small, a Strategic Authority will cover multiple travel to work areas.

3.4 Local identity should also factor into the boundaries of Strategic Authorities. Geographies
should also align with existing or new Local Authority boundaries (following any reorganisation)
and other public sector service boundaries.

page 6



3.5 The government’s strong preference is for partnerships that bring more than one Local
Authority together over a large geography. In exceptional circumstances, a single Local Authority
can also become a Foundation Strategic Authority, but cannot become a Mayoral Strategic
Authority. This is because the government believes that conflating the separate responsibilities of
a Local Authority and a Mayor into the same individual/institution would risk the optimal delivery of
both. This could, for example, prevent Cornwall from establishing a Mayoral Strategic Authority if it
wished to explore this option.

3.6 Where local leaders cannot agree on the right geography, a ministerial directive will be
applied, enabling the government to create Strategic Authorities when all other routes have been
exhausted.

3.7 Should leaders in Devon wish to proceed with a mayoral model, or leave this option open for
future consideration, the White Paper presents two main options for our area when it comes to
reorganisation and establishing a Strategic Authority:

a) At least two unitary Local Authorities are formed, covered by one Strategic Authority for the
ceremonial county of Devon.

b) One unitary Local Authority is formed covering the ceremonial county of Devon, along with
a Strategy Authority covering Devon and at least one other neighbouring Local Authority
(Cornwall for example).

Mayoral Powers

4.1 A statutory Devolution Framework will set out a suite of new powers and processes which will
provide blanket coverage of all Strategic Authorities in England, at least to the ‘foundational’ level.
The government’'s end ambition is for all parts of the country to move towards a mayoral model.

4.2 The list below includes the areas where Strategic Authorities are expected to act strategically
to drive growth and support the shaping of public services, where strategic level coordination adds
value:

a) Transport and local infrastructure

b) Skills and employment support

¢) Housing and strategic planning

d) Economic development and regeneration
e) Environment and climate change.

f) Health, wellbeing and public service reform
g) Public safety

4.3 The vast majority of new powers will be set exclusively for areas with a Mayor. Whereas the
agreed devolution deal for Devon and Torbay was set at ‘Level 2’ of three tiers, the new
framework would bring the Devon and Torbay deal to a baseline Level 1 equivalent status.

4.4 Areas with a Mayor which meet specified eligibility criteria may apply to become designated as
an Established Mayoral Strategic Authority, unlocking access to further powers and an Integrated
Settlement: a single combined funding package allowing for greater flexibility.

4.5 Established Mayoral Strategic Authorities will be able to propose, individually or with others,
additional functions to be added to the statutory Devolution Framework, which can be piloted
locally. Successful pilots will then be considered for addition to the framework.

4.6 A full list of powers, functions and abilities under the new Devolution Framework can be found
online (see pp. 86-90 of the English Devolution White Paper).

page 7


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/676028c9cfbf84c3b2bcfa57/English_Devolution_White_Paper_Web_Accessible.pdf

Strategic Planning

5.1 The White Paper sets out that all areas will be required to develop Spatial Development
Strategies over a strategic geography and within a defined timeframe, regardless of the devolution
model agreed.

5.2 Local Plans will need to be in general conformity with these high-level documents. The
responsibility for detailed policy-making and site allocations will remain with Local Authorities
through their Local Plans.

5.3 For mayoral areas, Mayors will be empowered to develop and propose Spatial Development
Strategies. Mayors will also have access to development management powers allowing them to
intervene in planning applications of potential strategic importance. For non-mayoral areas
covering multiple Local Authorities, members will need to work together to deliver Spatial
Development Strategies.

Assessment

6.1 The Devolution White Paper is of seminal importance for the Council and the communities that
we serve. It represents a significant shift in direction from the devolution framework previously set
out in the Levelling Up White Paper (2022). In particular it signals a far more strident and directive
approach to securing universal coverage as opposed to negotiating devolution deals on a case-by-
case basis. Alongside the streamlining of local government structures there is an explicit
preference for Mayors. This is backed up by incentives, such as the promise of integrated
settlements and more flexible powers, as well as the threat of Ministerial directions if consensus
cannot be reached. The policy intent extends beyond local government and seeks to align wider
public service boundaries such as job centres, police, probation, fire and health.

6.2 Responding to the White Paper presents a rare challenge for the Council, working alongside
our peers and stakeholders. It is clear that this needs to consider how both strategic and principal
authorities can be constituted to best effect. There are a number of potential building blocks for
this, including existing local government areas alongside functional geographies including housing
and labour markets (as represented by travel to work areas). But, as the contrasting coverage of
the current police (Devon and Cornwall) and fire & rescue services (Devon and Somerset)
highlights, itis difficult to discern a single ‘uber geography to which ever public service naturally
snaps.

6.3 In relation to the coverage of Strategic Authorities experience elsewhere in the country
highlights that new partnerships are being forged. For example Dorset, Somerset and Wiltshire
Councils are promoting the creation of a new Heart of Wessex Mayoral Combined Authority (MCA)
that will also become the Strategic Authority. There is considered to be a particular opportunity to
promote an equivalent arrangement for the peninsular covering Devon, Plymouth, Torbay and
Cornwall. This would exceed the guideline population threshold of 1.5m people and bring together
an area that includes established industries, such as tourism, together with key growth sectors
such as advanced manufacturing, clean energy, digital and professional services.

6.4 The need to secure access to the types of investment and funding streams that a mayoral
arrangement would unlock is particularly acute in a District such as East Devon due to the
significant growth agenda with the highest rates of housing delivery and economic growth across
the peninsular. Subsequently it is a specific recommendation of this report that the potential to
establish a Mayoral Combined Authority for the peninsular geography is endorsed. This would be
as a successor to the ongoing establishment of a Combined County Authority for Devon and
Torbay. The CCA will become a Foundation Strategic Authority under the terms of the White
Paper. As the name suggests, this would be very much at the bottom end of the range in terms of
accessing powers and finances.

6.5 In terms of constituting Principal Authorities there are considered to be a number of potential
permutations as set out below. These are not necessarily mutually exclusive and regard will need

page 8



to be paid to the guideline that new unitary authorities should have a minimum population of 500k
people.

1) A single unitary Council covering Devon — this is likely to be favoured by the County Council

2) Two Unitary Councils covering Devon, potential constructed on a north/south or east/west
axis. This option is favoured by the majority of the Devon Districts

3) Potential combinations with the existing unitaries of Plymouth and/or Torbay

4) Creation of a new Exeter Unitary Council — this option is favoured by Exeter City Council.
With a current population of around 130k the City is though significantly below the 500k
threshold for unitary councils set out in the White Paper. It remains to be seen whether a
new administrative boundary for this unitary council, which potentially splits existing District
boundaries, is advocated.

6.6 There is no doubt that the negotiations necessary to resolve the way forward in a Devon
setting will be delicate and potentially divisive. Nonetheless there is a clear expectation in the
White Paper that, as far as possible, consensus is reached. The Leaders of the eight Devon
Districts have already issued a joint statement (Appendix B) opposing the single Devon unitary
option and advocating further consultation with residents, businesses, elected representatives,
and stakeholders.

6.7 It is a specific recommendation of this report that this statement is endorsed. Furthermore itis
recommended that authority is delegated to the Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader
and Portfolio Holder for Council and Corporate Co-ordination to advance these negotiations and
ensure that the best interests of East Devon residents are represented.

Next Steps

7.1 The White Paper signals an intent for the majority of key reforms to be in situ by the end of the
current parliamentary term. This includes coverage of Spatial Development Strategies for
example. In terms of Local Government Reorganisation there will be a phased approach to
delivery, taking into account where reorganisation can unlock devolution. A new Devolution Priority
Programme (DPP) will be introduced for those areas seeking to deepen and broaden devolution
proposals.

7.2 Ministers intend to formally invite unitary proposals in January 2025. This should set out their
criteria for sustainable unitary structures, how and when to submit proposals and how the
government intends to respond to proposals. It likely that interim plans will then need to be
submitted in March 2025. The subsequent deadline for formal proposals will then be as follows;

e May 2025 for areas that want to move at pace with LGR to unlock future devolution, where
County Council elections would also be postponed

e Autumn 2025 for areas that are part of the DPP, where council elections have been
postponed

e Autumn 2025 for other areas, with Council elections going ahead in May 2025

The expectation is that new Unitaries will go live in either April 2027 or April 2028 depending upon
capacity and the devolution proposals in the area.

7.3 An immediate issue therefore becomes whether a request to delay the County Council
elections planned for May 2025 is made by the requisite deadline of Friday 10" January. This
request can only come from the County Council. A special meeting of the County Council has
been arranged for 10:00 on the 9™ January 2025 in this respect. A verbal update on the outcome
of this meeting will be given at the EDDC Council meeting.

page 9



Conclusion

8.1 The publication of the Devolution White Paper marks a very important milestone. As well
moving to a position of devolution by default, it also sets out a twin pronged approached with local
government reorganisation. There is considerable emphasis placed on the role of Mayors, with
associated structures able to access the most far reaching and flexible powers including integrated
financial settlements. Universal coverage of Strategic Authorities will provide delineation between
strategic decisions and front line service delivery.

8.2 There are potentially a number of different options that future local government structures
could take in Devon in conjunction with wider devolution proposals. Close partnership working will
be required with our peers and stakeholders in order to consider and develop these options
including how they best serve the needs of East Devon communities moving forward.

Financial implications:

There is no direct financial request being made in this report to affect the immediate financial
position of the Council, however the implications of devolution and future funding for the area
needs to be carefully considered by members.

Legal implications:

There are no significant legal implications at this stage as the report simply updates Full Council
on the government white paper and the options available moving forward. The process for taking
any proposals forward will be clarified by the Secretary of State in due course.

page 10



Jim McMahon OBE MP
» Minister of State for Local Government and
.. . English Devolution
M|n|St|’y Of HOUS”‘]g, EoMngtr)snham Street
Communities & SW1P 4DF
Local Government

To: Leaders of all two-tier councils and
neighbouring unitary authorities

16 December 2024

Dear Leaders

The English Devolution White Paper published today sets out how the Government
plans to deliver on our manifesto pledge to transfer power out of Westminster
through devolution and to fix the foundations of local government. You will receive
under separate cover a letter outlining the ambition and key elements of the White
Paper, but | also wanted to write to areas which might be in scope for a joint
programme of devolution and local government reorganisation, to set out a clear
process and key milestones.

The Government’s long-term vision is for simpler structures which make it much
clearer for residents who they should look to on local issues, with fewer politicians
able to focus on delivering. Local government reorganisation, alongside devolution
over a large strategic geography, can drive economic growth whilst delivering
optimal public services. To help deliver these aims, we will facilitate local
government reorganisation in England for two-tier areas and for unitary councils
where there is evidence of failure, or where their size or boundaries may be
hindering an ability to deliver sustainable, high-quality public services.

Given how much interest there has been, and will continue to be in this programme, |
am writing now to all councils in two-tier areas, and to neighbouring smaller unitary
authorities, to give you further detail and to set out our plans to work with you over
the coming months.

Local government reorganisation

My intention is to formally invite unitary proposals in January 2025 from all councils
in two-tier areas, and small neighbouring unitary councils. In this invitation, | will set
out further detail on the criteria | will consider when taking decisions on the proposals
that are submitted to Government. | intend to ask for interim plans by March 2025.

page 11



As set out in the White Paper, new unitary councils must be the right size to achieve
efficiencies, improve capacity and withstand financial shocks. For most areas, this
will mean creating councils with a population of 500,000 or more. However, there
may be exceptions to ensure new structures make sense for an area, including on
devolution. Final decisions will be made on a case-by-case basis. We will ask you to
work with other councils in your area to develop unitary proposals that are in the best
interests of the whole area, rather than developing competing proposals.

Devolution

We are clear that reorganisation should not delay devolution. Plans should be
complementary, with devolution remaining the overarching priority. In January, we
will therefore also set out which areas will be included in our Devolution Priority
Programme, aimed at places ready to come together under the sensible geography
criteria set out in the White Paper and wishing to progress to an accelerated
timescale. This will be with a view to inaugural mayoral elections in May 2026. This
is an exciting programme and there has already been significant interest even before
the White Paper was published.

| am aware that different places will be in different stages of their devolution journey.
While some will already have an existing strategic authority, others may be in the
process of establishing one, and others still may need reorganisation to take place
before they can fully benefit from devolution.

| also understand that delivering these ambitious plans for devolution and for local
government reorganisation will be a significant change. It will be essential for
councils to work with local partners, including MPs, to develop plans for sustainable
unitary structures capable of delivering the high-quality public services that residents
need and deserve.

Transition and implementation

We are under no illusion about the scale of issues facing local government. It is in all
our interests to make sure we are avoiding unnecessary spend at a time when
budgets are already tight, so we will be working with sector partners to avoid use of
expensive consultants wherever possible.

My department will be working closely with the Local Government Association,
District Councils Network, County Councils Network and others, to develop a shared
understanding of how reorganisation can deliver the best outcomes for local
residents and businesses. We have a collective responsibility to ensure councils are
better supported throughout reorganisation. This will include preparing robust
proposals with evidence, standing up new unitary councils ready for vesting day and
work to deliver the significant opportunities that are possible by creating suitably
sized unitary structures. We will take a phased approach and expect to deliver new
unitary authorities in April 2027 and 2028.

page 12



Timelines and next steps

| have heard from some areas that the timing of elections affects their planning for
devolution, particularly alongside reorganisation. To help manage these demands,
alongside our objectives on devolution, and subject to meeting the timetable outlined
in this letter, | am minded-to lay secondary legislation to postpone local council
elections from May 2025 to May 2026.

However, | will only do this where this will help the area to deliver both reorganisation
and devolution to the most ambitious timeframe — either through the Devolution
Priority Programme or where reorganisation is necessary to unlock devolution or
open up new devolution options. There will be two scenarios in which | will be willing
to postpone elections;

- Areas who are minded-to join the Devolution Priority Programme, where they
will be invited to submit reorganisation proposals to Government by Autumn
2025.

- Areas who need reorganisation to unlock devolution, where they will be
invited to submit reorganisation proposals to Government by May 2025.

For any area in which elections are postponed, we will work with areas to move to
elections to new ‘shadow’ unitary councils as soon as possible as is the usual
arrangement in the process of local government reorganisation.

For all other areas elections will take place as scheduled in May 2025, and | will
invite in January proposals for reorganisation to be submitted to Government by
Autumn 2025.

To lay the relevant legislation to postpone elections, | will need a clear commitment
to devolution and reorganisation aims from upper-tier councils in an area, including a
request from the council/s whose election is to be postponed, on or before Friday 10
January. This request must set out how postponing the election would enable the
council to make progress with reorganisation and devolution in parallel on the
Devolution Priority Programme, or would speed up reorganisation and enable the
area to benefit from devolution as quickly as possible once new unitary structures
are in place.

| am working together with my colleague and fellow Minister, Baroness Taylor, who
will host a webinar with leaders and chief executives of councils to discuss the next
steps | have outlined in this letter. | hope you will be able to attend that

discussion.

| welcome your views on any matters raised in this letter. As set out above, | will
require a clear commitment to delivering both reorganisation and devolution to the
most ambitious timeframe, with any request to delay council elections by Friday 10
January. Please respond or direct any queries to
EnglishDevolutionLGEnquiries@communities.gov.uk.

page 13


mailto:EnglishDevolutionLGEnquiries@communities.gov.uk

| look forward to working with you to build empowered, simplified, resilient and
sustainable structures for local government. | am copying this letter to council Chief
Executives, and where relevant to Best Value Commissioners. | am also copying this
letter to local Members of Parliament, and where relevant to Mayors of combined
(county) authorities, and Police (Fire) and Crime Commissioners.

Yours ever,

= meadon .

JIM MCMAHON OBE MP
Minister of State for Local Government and English Devolution

page 14



Appendix B

Joint statement: Devon District Councils — update on devolution
and local government reform — Friday 3" January 2025

This joint statement is made following the
publication of the English Devolution White Paper

“The Devon districts are fully supportive of genuine devolution of powers from
Whitehall to local government.

“‘However, following the publication of the Devolution White Paper, and subsequent
statements by the leader of Devon County Council, we would like to make it clear
that we do not support the creation of one unitary council for Devon.

“Our county, including Torbay, is diverse and made up of nearly 1 million residents
across urban, coastal, and rural areas. Any reform of local government in Devon
should follow a period of proper consultation with residents, businesses, elected
representatives, and stakeholders. Looking at the evidence, we should decide
collectively what is best for our area. A single unitary council for the county risks
diminishing local representation, with decision-making that is remote from the
communities we serve.

“We do not support postponing the county council elections scheduled for May 2025.
The government has indicated that this will only happen in priority areas who have
clear and agreed plans. This is not the case in Devon, so we cannot be in the first
phase of these reforms.

“We recognise that the government’s white paper sets a clear direction of travel. As
Devon’s city, district, and borough council leaders, we want to work collaboratively
with others in particular with our neighbouring unitary councils to agree how we
respond to this. Any changes must be carefully considered, transparent, and
inclusive, ensuring that residents and businesses are fully engaged in shaping the
future governance of Devon.

“Our objective must be to get this right for our residents and businesses. That cannot
be achieved if we make rushed decisions that have not been given the serious
consideration that they deserve."

Statement agreed by the following leaders:

Clir Paul Arnott, East Devon

Clir Phil Bialyk, Exeter

Clir Julian Brazil, South Hams

page 15



Clir David Clayton, North Devon
Cllr Mandy Ewings, West Devon
Cllr Ken James, Torridge

Clir Richard Keeling, Teignbridge

Clir Luke Taylor, Mid Devon

page 16



	Agenda
	4 English Devolution White Paper
	Appendix A Ministerial Letter
	Appendix B Devon District Leaders Joint Statement


